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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its Profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.




(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31* March, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

The Company is a Private Limited Company as per the Act. The requirement of payment of managerial
remuneration as per section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations provided to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
e provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
e provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)




above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. So, compliance with
respect to section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.109818W

e

A. N. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 042649
UDIN: 24042¢43RKRGED {499
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2024




“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and

(c)

(d)

(e)

Equipment by which all the assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years. In our opinion, periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the
year. According to the information and explanations provided to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, there is no immovable
properties (other than the properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

As represented by the Management, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. Discrepancies
were less than 10% in aggregate for each class of inventory and have been properly
dealt with in the books of accounts.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in

aggregate during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. Hence, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the QOrder is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not made
any investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Hence, reporting clause (iii) (a) to (f) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.




(v)

(vi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company has not given any loan to directors. Hence, the requirements under section 185 of
the Act are not applicable. The Company has made investments in a Company and it has
complied with the requirements of section 186.

According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has neither accepted any deposits nor accepted any amounts which are
considered deemed to be deposits, as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of the section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

We are informed that the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (l) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
activities carried on by the Company. Hence, clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

(vii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess, Goods & Services Tax and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess, Goods & Services Tax and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no dues of
Income-tax or Sales tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of Customs or
duty of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there were no transactions

(ix)

which were previously not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Hence, clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not defaulted any loans or other borrowings from any lender.
Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.
(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, there are
no funds raised on short- term basis which have been utilized for long term
purpose. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or
joint venture during the year ended on March 31, 2024. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public
offer /debt instruments. Hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
provided to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause (xi)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company as required under
section 177 of the Act. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year under the vigil
mechanism established by the parent company for the Group.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause (xii)(a), (b) and (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause (xiii) of
paragraph 3 of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.




(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, Internal
Audit is not applicable to the Company as per Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected to its Directors. Hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable and reporting under clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not incurred cash losses during the current financial year cash losses aggregating to
Rs. 25.7 Mn were incurred during the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 48, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




(xx)  Based on the verification of the details provided, the criteria specified under section 135 of
the Act is not fulfilled and hence the requirement of spending on Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(a)
and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

For V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.109818W

Ll

—_—

-

A. N. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 042649
UDIN: 24042¢Y9 pk A ED1699
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2024




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date to the Members of Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited on the Ind AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub- section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dot & Key Wellness
Private Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the ICAI.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the




assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasona ble assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.109818W

Qng'-:ufl_

A. N. Shah
Partner :
Membership No.: 042649 =
UDIN: 24042643 g k BGHE @4629
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 14, 2024




Dot & Key Wellness Private Lirmnited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2074

{AN amounts are in INR millions except per shore data ond unless stoted otherwise)}

ASSETS
Non-Current Assers
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Firiancial assets

Investrnerts

Other financial assets
Deforred tax assets
Other RoR-Lurent agsets
Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assers
Other curtent assets
Totzl Cutrent Assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EqQuity
Equity share capital

Other egulty
Toral Equity

Uatilides

Nonr-Current Uabilities:

Financial liabitities
Lease Liahilities

Provisions

Deferred Tox Liabilities

Total Non-Corrent Liabilities

Current Lishilities:

Financial Fabilities
Lease Lizbilities
Trade payahles

-Tota! cutstanding dues of Micro enterprise and small enterpfise
-Total eutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Orther financial liabilities
Provisions
Contract Lisbiities
Cther current Habilities
Current tax Babilities {Net}

Total Current Liabflicas

Total Lizhifities

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Notes
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As it As at
3% March 2024 31iMarch2073

2223 1%.85
678 438
043 0.43
- 0.01
0.00 0.00
4822 1.27
- 2751
0.01 0.02
72.67 49.47
14853 #3.71
24.54 67.10
184.28 17.35
333.26 290.00
9.06 £.05
2278 10.43
782.45 476.63
Bo0.22 526.02
13.57 1257
570654 415,03
58321 428.60

228 -
148 112

Q.75 -
651 142
2.44 472

9.48 -
30,68 36.17
193.56 45.77
0.26 0.22
700 3.17
5.20 332
11.78 -
269,40 08837
275.91 97.50
$80.32 526.09

As per our report attached

For V. C. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Repgistration Neo: 109518wW

e

A. N. Shah
Partnaer

Membership MNo: 042649

Flace: Mumbai

Date: Z4th May, 2024

Fer and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Dot & Key Weliness

Spﬁsh}g{g_

Director

DiM No.:03574264

Place; Kolkata

Date: 14th May, 2024

Private Limited

W

Ganesh Padmanabhan

Director

DN No..G7202923

Place: Murmbai

Date: 14th May, 2024
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Dot & Key Wellness Private limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts gre in INR millions except per shore data ond unless steted otherwise)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
INCOME ' .
Revenue from Operations 28 1,983.45 577.33
Other income . 29 24,73 20.53
TOTAL INCOME 4,008.18 557.86
EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 30 637.928 21843
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in -Trade 33 (64.82} {25.04}
Employee benefits expense 32 7126 53.29
_ Finance costs 33 0.46 0.69
Depreciation and amortization expense 34 8.10 £6.35
Cther expenses 35 1,147 25 392,26
Total expenses. 180023 535.98
Profit / {Loss) before exceptional Hems and tax 20705 {38.12}
Add/f{Less}): Exceptionst items
Profit / {Loss) before tax 207.95 {38.12}
Tax expense [ (benefit) :
Current tax 10 2507 -
Deferred tox 28.11 {8.80}
Total tax expense f{benefit) 5318 (8.80)
Profit/(Loss) for the period 18477 {29.31}
COther Comprehensive Income
A. trems that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss
Remeasirements of defined benefit Hability/ (asset) 0.60 0.09
Fair valuaiion of investments measured threugh OC -
Income tax effect on above {0.15} {0.02}
Izems that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss, net of tax 0.45 . 0.07
Totai Comprehensive Income for the year 155.22 {29.25)
Eamings per share of face value Rs. 10/- sach
Basic earnings per share {in Rs.} 36 112.50 {2156}
Diluted earning per share {in Rs.) 133.80 {21.56)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached

For V. C, Shah & Cuo.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 109818WwW

Pt

e

A, N. Shah
Partner
Membership No: 842649

Place: Mumbat
Date: 14th May,2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited

>

Ganesh Padmanabhan
Director
UIN Np.:07202823

Suyash Sar;f o
Director
DIN No.:035874264

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14th May, 2024

Place: Kolkata
Date: 14th May,2024



Dot & Key Weliness Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 33 March 2024
{all gropunts ore In INR millions except per shire deta and uriless stotad otherwise}

! ) For the year ended For the yeor ended
Perticulacs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Operating activities
Frofit f ffoss) induding comprehensive income before axceptional ltems and tax MEES {38.03)
Adfustments to reconcile prafit / floss} before tax 1o net cosh Foves:
Depreciation of propamy, ptant & eguipment 7.9% 6,32
Amortisation of intangible assets k) oz
IftermsT expense 0.66 et}
UUnreafisad {5ain} fioss frar sale of ivestments - .
Current yoar ESOP expenses, from which ESOP reserve created 035
Reslised (Gnin) /Loss from sale of invesments . .
JMTRIEST inECHTIE : [25.24) {18.96}
Provision for Gratuity
Prowision for Bonus
Frovigion for Leave
Allpwance for expected cradit loss 0.7 G4
Share besed mapenses - N
Lrabrijties no jonger required written back 1,208 {GA%;
Qperating predfit before warking capital changes 19481 {024}
Working captrel Adjustmants:
{increase)/ decrease in trade mesivables {1818} (4235}
{increase)fdacrease In inventorles (B4.82) {z5.04}
fincreacelfdecrease it current finaneial asset - -
{Increasel/decreass in non-currert financta! ussets 146.53) 285 29
fincraaselfoncrease in other finangial assats (2.0} [e.15)
fincrease}/decressa in other current assets ‘885 B8l
{increase}/decruase in other Non Current asgets -
Increate/f(decrease] in Trade phyables . -1 ] %9
tncreasey/idecrease] in cornent linancia! liabidites 15577 20,40
Incrense/(decrense] in short term provisions o6 G2
increass/(decrease) in contract fabidites 383 1
increase f{decrease) in other. current liabitities (23.19) {AQIFA)
tncréasefidecrease] in long term provisions .36 .64
Cash generated from / (used} in operabions 25,37 29657
Refund / tpyment) of taxes (net) - -
Hiet cash flow froen f {rsed In] operating acthvities (A} 18 24633
Imvesting activities
Puschase of Pro perty, Piant and Eguiprnent {8.00) 18.78)
ROL Asser ) {787 -
Saie procecds from dispose! of assels s X i
iresment in Fined Geposils 43.26) {215,55)
sestent i Mutuii funds - -
Proceeds Srom sale of Irnwestmenis - (E.0)
tnterast Income (Finance Incotme) 134 56
Net cash flows From / fused i) investing activities 18] [53.78) [223.77}
Finandng activities
Proceeds fram exercise of share options - .00
Froceeds frir Share premium - [Q.00%
Proceeds from Loans A -
Repaymant of inan: - -
InereasefiDecredse] in Lease lubifities 200 (4.6
ipfterest pxpRasE ] (0690
Net cash fiows from / {used InfAinandng activides [C) 154 (5317
Het Inease [ idecrease] in cash and cash equivalents (Aé8-+C) 166.93 1724
Cash and rash equivalens at the beginning of the year 1735 e
Net foreign exchange differences .
Cash and tash equivalents at the year end {refer note 14) 184.28 1735
Note:

17he cash flow statement has bean preparad under the indirect method as 56t out in Indiss Accounting Standard [ Ind A5 | 7 Siaterment of Cash

T Component of cash and cash equivalants

Zash and gash egovalents frefer mote 14} 18428 17.3%
Add: Bank overdraft/cash eredit . -
Totalcash and cath equvalents 184,28 I728
The aci ing rotes are an integral part of the fi izl

FopRe our report atlached

For V. L. Shah & Ca. For and g0 behatf of Boaed of Directors of

Chartered Actountants Lot B Rey Wellness Private 1)

Firm Registration Na; 109815W
wh
AnGeat,

AM.Shah
Fartres
WMembersuip No: 052643

Flace: Kolkat:
Dater 18%h May, 2324

Fiace: Mumbai
ate: 24eh May 2024

Ganesh Padmarabhan
Tirector
DN Mo, 07202825

Place: Mumbat
Lt 24th Mey, 2024



Dot & Key Wellness Private limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{4} smoents.are in INR millions excépt per share doto ond unless stated otherwise}

a.Share Capital

Eguity shares of INR 10 gach i&méd, subscribad ang fully peid

At L April 2022

Share Issued during the Year
At 31 March 2023

Share Issued during the Year
At 31 March 2024

b. Other Equitys
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Nc. of shares

Amount

13,57,:43.00

E_—u
L
=

13,57,143.00

13.57
=

13,57,143.00

13.57

H
i

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus

Surplus/{Deficit} in
statement of profit and
foss

Employee Share
Capital reserve  Options Scheme
Reserve

Securities
prersium

Cther
comptehensive
income (OCT)

Total other equity

A< 1 Bpril 2622

(38.55)

- AB2.90

_ (047}

444.28

Met Frofit [ {Loss} for the year
Dther comprehensive income

{29.21)

007

{29.31}
047

Tividends { including DOT)

Securities premipm on issueof shares
Shares allotted during the year
Adddition during the year

ESOF lapsefforfeited

Transfer to rewined eamings

(67.87)

- 48280

a.00)

As at 31 March 2023

{0.60j

415,03

Mat Profit f iLoss} for the year

Crther comnprehensive income
Dividends { including DOTE

Serurities premium on ssue of shares.
Shares granted denng the year
sddition during the year

ESDP lapsefforfeited

Transfer {0 rétained earnings

- 0.9

245

15477
.45

G3¢

[As &t 31 March 2024

- 0.39 482.9¢

0.45

570.64

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the finands! statements

£ per our report attached

For V. C. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accosntants

Firm Regiistration No: 109818W

Far and on behalf of Bosrd of Directors of
Dot & Key Wehiness Private Limited

wo©

Ganesh Padmanablian .=
Diractor
DN No.:07202022

—

Fu N, Shah
Partner
Membership No: 042649

.. Suyash Saraf
. -+ Director
I DI No.:02574264

Plgce Mumibai
Date; 14th May, 2024

Pizre: Murnbast
Drate: 14th May, 2024

Place: Kofkata
Date: 14th Mavy, 2024



Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information

Dot & Key Weliness Private Limited {the ‘Company’} is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled
in india. The registered office of the Company is focated at 2/7 Sarat Bose Road, Vasundhara Building, 3
Figor, Kolkata-700020.

The Company is engaged in the business of selling & distribution of beauty, weilness, persona care, skin care,
hair care products on the online platforms or websites such as e-commerce, internet, intranet as well as
through general tratfe and modern trade etc.

2. Material accounting poticies

2A. Basis of preparation

i} Statement of compliance:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS}
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) read with Ruie 3 of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time} and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule 1! 1o the Companies Act, 2013, {ind AS compliant Schedule 11).

mard
-

Historical cost convention:

The financial statementts have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for
certain asseis and liabifities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historicsl cost is generally based on the fair vaiue of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2B. Summary of matertal accounting policies

aj Current versus non-current dassification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is

-

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting periog or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for
atleast twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified a5 non-current.,

A lHability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

There is no unconditional right ta defer the settiement of the liahility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other Yabilities as non-current,

i o
" e LR A
S et




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes te Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

b}

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are classified as non-current assets and liabiliities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified peried of twelve months as its operating
cycle,

Property Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depregiation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributabie cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving st the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is included In asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow t¢ the {ompany and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Alt other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss
for the period during which they are incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after it use is induded In the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met, '

Cost incurred on Property, plant and eguipment not ready for their inténded use is disclosed as
Capital Work-in-Progress. Advances paid towards the acguisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other non-current

assets.

An itern of property, plant and equipttient and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant & Equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are récognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment:

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method based on useful lives of the assets prescribed
in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

teasehold improvements are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of primary lease or
the expected useful life whichever is lower.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

~ Property Plant & Equipment  Useful lives (in years) .

~ Plant and Machinery : 15
Corfzputers _ 3
Furniture & Fixtures _. 10
Qffice Equipments 5

Vehicies _ 10




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2424

¢}

d}

The assets’ residual values which Is presently token as 5% , useful lives and methods of depreciation
are reviewed at each reporting period ardd adjusted prospectively for any change in estimate, if
appropriate. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change In accounting estimates.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Following, initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are casrigd at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, i any. Internally genersted intangible assets,
axcluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
statement of profit and {oss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

intangible assets with finite. lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of futiire economic benefits embodied In the asset are considered
to modify the amoriisation peried or method, as appropriate, and are trested as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
anrually, either individually or at the cash-génerating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed anhuafly to determine whether the indefinite [ife continues to be supportable, If not, the
change in useful ife from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal {i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control} or
when ne future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset {¢calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is inciuded in the statement of profit or loss.

Amortization of intangible assets:
Intangible assets are amortized on straight fine basis as per the following useful lives:

Intangible asset _ Useful lives {in years)}
Patents ) 30
Software 3

impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. if there i5 any indication of
Impairmént based on interna! / externat factors, an impairment loss is recognised, i.e. wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the assets net selling price and value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individuai
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amaount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to Hs recoverable amount.




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes tg Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2624

)

in assessing value in use; the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
8 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asseséments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount
of the asset over its rémaining usefui life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast caiculations,
which are prepared for the Company’s {GUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast caiculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-térm growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

‘tmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recegnised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverabie amount sinte the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment ioss been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treated as a revaluation Increase.

1 nventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each.product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

- Rew materials: Cost includes cost of pﬁrchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present iocation and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

- Stockin Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and othier costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion necessary to make the sale,

An inveéntory provision is recognised for cases where the net realisable value is estimated to be lower
than the inventory carrying value. The net realisable value is estimated taking into account various
factors, including obsolescence of material due to design change, process change etc., unserviceable
itemns i.e. items which cannot be used due to deterioration in quality or due to shelf life or damaged
in storage and ageing of material L.e. slow moving/non-moving prevailing safes prices of inventory.




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

f) leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether 3 contractis, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 2 period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as 3 lessee:

The Company apglies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term teases and feases of Jow-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i, Right-of-use assets (ROU asset)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commengement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of iease
fiabilities. '

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencemernit date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
- Right of use for Properties 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the iease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to mpairment. Refer 1o the accounting policies in section {d)
Impzirment of non-financial assets.

ii. teaseliabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable iease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual vaiue
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce
inventories} in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

in calcutating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabiiities is increased to refiect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, 2 change in the
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lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease paymentsj or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underiying asset.

ifi. Short term leases and leases of low value assets:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property
{i.e., those leases that have 3 lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option}. it also appiies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases where the underlying asset is considered to be low vaiue.

Lease payments on short-term Jeases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on 2
straight-ine basis over the lease term.

g} Finandial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne 'entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

. Initial recognition and measurement:

Finandial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All Financial assets and liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income {QC1), and fair value through profit or loss.

Financiol Assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recoghition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practica) expedient, the Company initially méasures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in section {{Pi}
Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
GCl, it needs to give rise to cash fiows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment i3 referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are ¢lassified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Financial Liabilities

Financiat liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and berrowings, payabies, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate..

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2024

H. Subsequent measurement:

i. Financial assets

For purpases of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
* Financial assets at amortised cost
» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive inceme {FYTOCH
» FHinancial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financie! assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised tost are subseguently measured using the effective interest (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized, modified, or impaired.

The Company’s financial assets at smortised cost includes trade and other receivables, loans to
employees.

Financial Assets ot fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCIH

. Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are heid within business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principa!
amount outstanding and selling financial assets,

Financial assets at foir value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or foss unless it measured at amottised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recegnition. The transaction cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i Financial liabilities

Financiod liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
“financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vaiue through profit or oss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the ¢riteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not subseguently transferred te P&L. However, the
company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair vatue of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Financial Habilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
The carrving amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently rneasured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of & financiat liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees and points paid or receiy;ed
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that form an integra} part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial Hability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on inftial recognition,

Financia! guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 2
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. financial guarantee
contracts are recognised inifially as a liability &t fair value, adjusted for transaction .costs that are
directly attributable to the issuante of the guarantee, Subseguently, the liability is measured at the
higher of the ameunt of loss allowance determined a5 per impairment requirements of Ind AS 108
and the amount recognised less when approgriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of ind AS 115. :

The Company's financial abifities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Ili. Derecognition

Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a partof a financial asset.or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e., removed from the Company’s staterment of financial position)
whern: ' _

= The rights 1o receive cash flows fraom the asset have expived

Or

= The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to s third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substanti aliy ali the
risks and rewards of the asset, but hastransferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its- entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumuiated in equity is recognised
in statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in
staternent of profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financiol LiabilitiesA financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the hability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiatly
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 2s the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

V. Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss {ECL} model for
measurement and recognition of impairment lass on the following finandial assets and credit risk
exposure:
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a) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of ind AS 115

b) Investments

¢} Other financial assets such as deposits, advantes etc.

The Company assesses on a forward Iooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOC) debt instruments. The impairment methodoclogy applied
depernds on whether there has beéen a significant increase in credit risk,

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by ind AS 100
Financial instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables

V. Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines dlassification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
iritial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financiai fiabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change In the business mode! for managing those assets. Changes to the business moded
are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the
business mode! as 3 result of externsl or internal changes which are significant to the Compa ny's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model oceurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perfarm an activity that is significant to its operations.
if the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, Josses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reciassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at
reciassification date.
Cifference between

previgus amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in
profit or loss.

| FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification
date becomes its new gross
i carrying amouni. EIR s
celculated based on the
[ new gross carrying amount.

| Amortised tost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at
l reclassification date. !
Difference hetween

previous amortised costand |
fair value is recognised in
QCl. No change in EIR due to
! reclassification.
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L FVTOC! Amortised cost Fait value at reciassification
date becomes its new
; amortised cost  carrying
' amount. However,
cumutative: gain or loss in
i 0OCI s adjusted against fair
value. Consequently, the
asset is measured as if ithad
! always been measured at
i amortised cost.
P FVTPL FVTOC Fair value at reclassification
date becomes s new
carrying amount, No other
adjustment is required.
| FvroQ FVIPL Assets  continue to  be
! measured at fair value.
' Cumulative geain or loss
previously re¢ognized in OC
is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on the
. . reclassification date.

V1. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financizl assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the bafance
sheet if there is a currently enforceablé legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention te settle on a net basis, 1o realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultanieously.

Revente recognition:

I Revenue from controcts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair vaiue of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually défined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties tollected on hehalf of the
government.

The Company identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and recognises

revenue as and when the perfermance obligations are satisfied. The specific recognition criteria

described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

i. Sale of products:
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products to customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for products.
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when products are delivered to customer.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, wiich is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and retfurns, if any,
as specified in the contracts with the customers.




Dot & Kev Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statenents as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

im

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for
discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on
accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with custemers. Due to the
short nature of credit pericd given to customers, there is no financing component in'the contract.

it. Contract balances:

- Contract assets
A cantract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for products or services transferred to
the customer. if the Company performs by transferring products or services to 3 customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, 3 contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is condiional.

- Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of finandial assets in section - Financial instruments — initial recognition and
suhbsequent measurement.

- Contract liahilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration [or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer,
& contract lisbility is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract

interest income:

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and using the
effective interest rate method. interest income is included under the head “Other income” in the
statement of profit and loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wili be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
The expense relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

i the effect of the time value of money is matetial, provistons are discounted using a current pre-fax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When giscounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at gach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees {INR), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
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{i} Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

{ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items,
which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

{iii} Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of other monetary items or on reporting
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initiafly recorded during the year, or
reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the staternent
of profit and toss in the year in which they arise.

Post-employment and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Alt short term employee benefits such as salaries, incentives, medical benefits which are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 maonths after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
relzted services which entities him to avail such benefits are recognized on an undiscounted basis and
charged to the statement of profit and joss.

Post-employment benefits
L. Defined Contribution Plans

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to
the funds is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service.

il.  Defined Benefit Plans

Grotuity

The company have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees.
The plan provides for a lump:sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
ernployment or on fermination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for
each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The gratuity
benefits are unfunded. ' '

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
made at the end of each financial year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the
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end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related ohligation.

Net interest is caiculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lisbility. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined henefit obligation as an expense in'the
statement of profit and loss:
-~ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
- Netinterest expense or income

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts inciuded in net
interest on the net defined benefit fiability, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through "Other comprehensive income’ in the
period in whith they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or 1oss in subsequent
periods.

Compensated absences
The Company provides for the encashment of teave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment/leave
with pay. The Hability is provided based on the number of days of unutilised leave at each bialance
sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
' at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current Habilities in the balance sheet if the
entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settfement for at least 12 months after the
reporting date, regardless of when the actual sefilement.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Jiabiiity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

s Inthe principal market for the asset or liability - or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market particibants would
use when pricing the asset or Jiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservabie inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair vaiue measurement as a whole:

* level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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» level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the iowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* -Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input ’chat is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on 2 recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization {based on the [owest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
wholej at the end of each reporting period. The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, advances, trade payables, bank overdraft and other financial liabifities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The management
selects appropriate valuation technigues using discountéd cash flow mode) when the fair value of the
financial assets and Habilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets. The inputs to these modeis are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Externai
vaiuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects external
vajuer on various criterla such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained by valuer, The management decides, after discussions with the
Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected t be paid to the tax authorities in 3ccordance
with the income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in india,

DBeferred tax .
Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabiiities are recognised for all 1axable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the ded uctsbie temporary differences, and the cairy forward of unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probabie that future taxable profits will aliow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered

. ;‘ff‘i"‘ﬂ - '\v‘ e
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current tax lizbilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax are measured using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized outside
profit and loss Is recognized outside profit and loss {either in 0O or in equity). The Company
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company reflect the effect
of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected
value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

n} Cash and cash équiva!ems

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash st banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and other short term highly Hquid
investments which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

o) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is 2 possible obfigation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of orie or more uncertain future events beyond the
contro! of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because 7t is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent Hability also arises in
extremnely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent Fability but distloses its existence in the financial
siatements.

p} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
eguity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus elerment in a rights issue, share split, and reverse shere spiit {consclication
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of ail dilutive potential equity shares, except where the rasult would
be anti-diiutive,




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to Financizl Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

g) Segment reporting policies

Considering Company’s aggressive expansion plan for driving synergy across fulfilment models, sales
channels and product categories, it necessitates change in current review mechanism. The
management réviews and allocates resources based on Omni business and Omni channel strategy,
which in the terms of ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ constitutes a single reporting segment.

r} Share capital

Equity shares are dlassified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable 1o the issue of equity
shares are recognised as 2 deduction from equity.

3.Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires the management o make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. Such judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are evaluated based
on historical experience and various other factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain
future events, which are believed to be reasonable under the dircumstances. Actua! results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or inthe period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcosmes that require a materiai
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liahilities afected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimates that have been made by the management in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amount recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of estimation uncertainty that
may have a significant risk of causing a2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial vear.

L Judgements:

* Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — the Company as
lessee :

The Company determines the fease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an aption to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised, It
considers all refevant factors that create an econamic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination.

il. Estimates and assumptions:
a. Estimation of useful life of property, plant and egnipment and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent 2 significant proportion of the asset
base of the Company. The charge in respect of périodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful fife and residual value at the end of its life. The useful ives and
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residual values of assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed periodicaily, including at each financial period/year end. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets.

Fair Vilue measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, theis fair value is measured using valuation
technigues inciuding the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where thisis not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments,

Estimation of defined benefit obligation and compenssted absences

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, compensated absences and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuaris! valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
in currencies consistent with the-currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Future satary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The mortality rate is based on pubtichy
available mortality tabies for the country. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes.

Income taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes intiuding judgment
on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments, A tax assessment can
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be avaitable against which the losses can be utilised. in assessing the probability the
Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxabie temporary differences refating to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against
which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant
management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the unused tax losses
and other deductibie temporary differences since the management is of the view that it is probable
the defersed tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the
approved business plans and budgets. :
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Provision

Provisions and Jiabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outfiow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liabifity require the
application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subjett to change. The
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of
changing facts and circurnstances.

impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets depending on their classification are based on
assumplions about risk of default, expected cash loss rates, discounting rates applied to these
farecasted future cash flows, recent transactions and independent valuer's report. The Company uses
Jjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment caleulation, based
on Company’s past histary, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

Provision for expected credit josses of trade receivables and contract assets:

The Company uses a simpiified approach to determine impairment loss aliowance on the portfelio of
trade receivabies, This is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation between historical cbserved defauit’ rates, forecast economic

“conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive to changes in

circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future.

Leases ~ Estimating the incremental borrowing rates:

The Company cannot readily determine the Interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (JBR} to measure lease fiabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a simifar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary 1o obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The 1BR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay, which requires
estimation when ne observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the fease.

The Company estimates the IBR using observahie inputs {such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company’s credit
rating).




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year etded 31 March 2624
(AT amounts are in INR millions except per share dota and unless stated otherwise)

Property, plant and equipment

CostfDeermed Cost
At 02 April 2022
Apditions
Disposals/transters
At 31 March 2023
Additions
Disposaisftransfers
At 31 March 2024

Accumtlated depreciation
AL 01 Apnil 2022
Cepreciation charge for the
Ve

Dispaosals

At 31 March 2023
Cpreciation charge {for the
yoar

Disposals

At 31 March 2024

Kt Book Value
Al 31 March 2024
At 31 March 2023

Right of Use Assets

Gross earrying amnount
At 1 April 2022
Adgitions

[hspaosals ftransfers

At 33 March 2023
Additions
Disposaisftransfers

At 31 March 2024

Arcumulated depreciation
At O3 Aprif 2022
Degreciation charge for the
yeur

Disposals

At 31 March 2023
Bepreciation churge for the
yerar

Disposais

At 31 March 2024

Net Book Vaiue
At 31 March 2024
At 31 March Z023

intangible assets

Grass CRYTYinG amoumnt
At 0 Aprit 2022
Additieng
Lisposalsfiransiers

At 31 March 2023
Additions
Cisposaisftransfers

A 31 March 20448

Accumulated amartisation
At BY April 2022
Deareciation charpe for the
yee

Digposals

At 31 March 2023
Deseaciation charge for the
year

Disposals

Al 3T March 3024

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2024
At 31 March 2023

Competers Furniture & Fixtures Office equipments Vehitles r:::i::d Total
182 167 .57 .10 8.66 1322
539 485 0.08 - 3.36 547
2‘.21 5,;4?2 0‘,_54 0:10 10-,_02 18—,68
092 4.13 0.85 - 300 8.90
3t13 9:85 1“.48 Ojlf} 13..02 2‘;.58
0.52 .15 .13 0.02 3,40 121
0.68% 339 .12 001 248 1.62
1..13 .53 0.25 0.03 0.83 2:83
074 078 4.17 iR ] G.84 252
1-.38 1.29 S42 0.04 1.73 3-35
125 B56 .06 0407 11,28 22,23
1.08 5.19 (.38 .08 9.13 15.85
Right of Use Assets Totat
14.12 34,52
14-. 12 14:12
787 7.87
2'1‘.99 23.:95
5.04 504
£70 4.70
Qt?d gt‘m
S.47 547
15:21 15:21
6.78 .78 -
4.38 438
Patent Taotal
.18 2.8
0.32 032
{;.SO OtSO
0.1 011
C;,G‘l 0?61
Q.04 .04
0.03 0.03
Q—.O? ﬂ:ﬂ?
s 821
C;,:t? G'.:'.?
043 .43
f.43 D43
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Intangibie assats ynder development

Gross FAFTYIRg ATROMNE
Ardi Awﬁ 02
Additions
Disposaisftransfers

A% 31 March 2023
Additinns
Disposaisfrangfers
At3) Maech 2024

et Book Value
AT3I Marech 2024
At 32 March 2023

Patent

“Totat

005

08

0,05

o.m

2.01

.43

41

G0

GG

o ﬁgm;..

assebs under o

A 31 March 2024

Fardcuiars

< 1year

1-2yrs 2-3yTS BT

Total

1) Frojests in progress

At 31 March 2023

Particulars

41 year

Total

i) Projeets in progress

12yrs 2-3yrs = dyrs
0.01 - ’

jixval

There are 1o guetdur T COST OVRTTIN DeGiects tompared 1o it orgina! fran and no pericds are temporariy suspended on the above mentoned reporting dates.
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3.1

Non-current Investment (Unguoted}
. As at 31 March 2024 As 3t 31 March 2023
Particulars - T
Unils Amount Uniis Amount

investment in Equity Instruments {Unguoted, fully paid up}

Nvksa Foundation {in Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

1 fuily paid equity shares of Rs, 10 each 0.00 .00
Total investments 0.00 n.en

*Nurnbérs are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported

investment at fair vaiue through OG (fully paid) reflect investment in unquoted securities, These securities are designated as
FVTOC! as they are not held for trading purpose and are not in similar line of business as the group,
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{Alf omounts are in INR millions except per shure dotir gnd unless stated otherwise)

Other Non Curremt Financiat Assets

Security Deposits
Ceposits with Finandal Insttution with maturity period more than 12 months

Income Taxes

The midjor components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Statemert of profit and loss:

Profit or Joss section:
Current income tax:
Current incowne tax charge
Adjstments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differances
income tax expensef{income] reported in the statement of profit or loss

00 section - Deferred tax related to ems
Tax Expenses/(income} on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Deferred tax expense charged / {credited) to OQ)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
139 +.27
46:83
48.22 127
For the year ended  Fortheé year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2507 -
2811 {3800
53.18 {8.80}
035 0.02
0.15 0.62

Reconciliztion of tax expense and the azcounting proft multiphed by Indiz’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

for the yearended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before tax 20795 [38.12)
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
5234 -
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate
Add/f(Less} - Tax effect of:
Expenses allowed fdisallowed 2568 -
Adjustment of unused tax losses [27.59) -
Qthers £2.37) -
Current tax provision 28.07 -
Deferred tax reversal flprovision) 28,33 18.80)
Tax expense recognized in the staterment 53.18 {&.80}
of profit and loss
Effective tax rate 25.57% 23.08%
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax assets and Kabiiities are attributable to the foltowing:
Particulars Asat Asar
31 March 2029 21 March 2023
impzct of brought forward losses and Unabsorbed deprectation - 5.2z
impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation as per books - {0.43)
Deferred rax assets (A) - “B.80
impactof brought forward iosses and Unabsorbed depraciation . 2755
Irepmct of difference batween tax depreciation and degreciztion as ger bogks 0.60 -
Deferred tax liabilities {B} 28,11 -

Deferred tax assets {net) (C=A-B)

e emy !
et
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Dot & Key Weilness Private Limited

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amourrts are in INR millions except per shure doto ond unless stited otherwise)

Reconcifiation of deferred tax assets [net):

Cpening baiance as of 1 April

Tax incomef(expense) during the period
recognised in profit or loss

Tax Incomeflexpense} during the period
recognised in OCH

Closing balance as at 31 March

For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(27.5%} 18,73
2811 {&.8C}
0.15 0.02
0.75 {27.51)

The Company elected 1o exercise the option permitted urder section 115BAA ofthe income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by Taxation Laws (Armendment}
Ordinznre, 2013, Accordingly, the Comparny has recognised Provision for income Tax and re-meatured s Deferrad tax assets/inbsdities basis tha rate
orescribed In the sa:d section, The impact of this change has been recogniser during the current financia: year.

Gross Movement in Current Income Tax Assets/({Liabillties) :

Particulars

Net income Tax Asset af beginning of tha year
Tex Assets and Advance tax paid

Less: Cumment year income tax expense
Current income Tax Asset/ (Lizbility)

Other Not Current Assets

Accrued Incorme

Total

Inventorias

{ Valued 8t lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stock in trade
Goods i Transit

Total

As at As at
31 Mar¢h 2024 31 March 2023
4.22 1.39
e07 283
[2507) -
{11.78) §.22
As At As a3t
31 March 2024 31 Match 2023
001 0.01
0.01 0.0,
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
146.33 76.15
226 758
148.53 2a.71

During the year ended March 31, 2024, Rs 7.72 Min (March 34, 2022; Rs 1.53 Mn} is recognised as provision taking inte account various factors, including

obsolescence of and ageing, atc.
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Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited .
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts gre in INR millions except per share dote and unfess stated othenwise)

Trade receivables

As st As at
31 March 2624 31 March 2023
Trade receivables - Considered Good - Unsecurad 84,54 67.90
Trade recewabiz which have significant increase in credit risk 086 0.98
Less: Afiowances for expected credit loss {0.563 {0.98}
24.54 B7.10
{ For details of trade recevable with refated party refer note 40 related party disciosures)
No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other gfficers of the company either severally or jointly with any other parson.
Trade receivables are nen-interest bearing. '
Trade receivabies Ageing Scheduje:
33-Mar-24 .
tess Than 6
Months BM -1 ¥rs 1-3¥rs >3Yrs Total
Lindisputed Trade Receivable- Considered
Good 7845 4598 0.43 - 84.54
Undisputed Trade Recalvable- which have
signifitant increase in cradit tisk 096 023 045 o .85
i 79.3% 539 D.86 - 85.40 |
31-Mar-23
Less Than B
Months EM -1 Yrs 1-3 ¥y >3Yrs Toial
Undisputad Trade Recenable Considered :
Good 86.61 0.25 0.0% - £7.50
Ungisputed Trade Receivable- Which Have
Significant Increase in Credit Risk Gos 034 G.57 . o488
i 56.69 089 6.60 - 68:08 |
Lash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank hatsnce in curnent account 114.23 1685
Cash in hand .05 ooz
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 70.00 a8
. ) 1B4.28 17.35
Bank batance other than cash and cash eguivalents
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 manths but less thar 12 monaths
-With Banks 333.26 280.00
33326 250.00
Other financial assets
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued an deposit but not due a08 203
9.06 .85
Uthet current assets
As at As ay
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance to suppliers {unsecured, considered good) 0.50 -
Advance against expenses (unsecured, considered goud} 8.36 448
Prepeaid expenses 0.94 072
Balance with statutory f governmaent
authorities 12,98 £.23
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Dot & Key Weliness Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{A#l amounts are in INR millions except per share doto and uniess stoted otherwise)

Share Cagital
No. of shares Amount
1} Authorised Equity Share Capital {Equity shares of fs. 10 each
At 1AprR 2022 : 15,50,000 15.50
lacrease / [decraase) during the year - -
A131 March 2023 15,50.600 1550
increase f {decreaze} during the year
At31March 2024 15,50,000 15.543
No. of shares Amgunt
i Authorised Preference Share Capltal (Preference shares of Rs. 20 each)
AtlApri 2022 ) 500,000 5.00
Increase / idecrease) during the year - -
At3EMamh 2023 o 5,00,000 5.00
Intrease {-{decrease; during the year - -
A131 March 2028 5,00,000 500
Note
t3 Terms] Aghts artached 1o equity shires
The: Company has only one class of eguity sharas having a par value of INR 12 per share. Each helder of eguity shares s entdleg to bne vote per share.
in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders.of equity shater will be entitler 1o recee ining assets of the Company, after distribotion of alf

preferential amaunte. The distribution will ba in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,
Each equuty shareholder is antitfed to dividends as and when the Compapy declares and pays dividend after obtaining shareholders’ approval.
Doring the year ended March 31, 2024, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution 1o equity share-holders was N { March 31, 2023 : NIL)

) jzsued share capital

a}Issued equity capitat Equity shares

Equity thares of INR 10 each issued, subcerlbed and fully paid No. of shares Amount
ATl AprH 2022 . 13,57 14y 1z57
Changes dueing the year - -
Ar 31 March 2023 12,657,142 13.57
Changes. during the yesr " Z

Az 31 March 2024 13,57,162 13.57




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to the financlal staterments for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions extcept per share data and uniess staved otherwisa)

ii¥) Details of shareholders holding mors than 5% shares In the company

Asat 31 March 2024
% of tosal % af change
Farticulars Promoier Name No. of shares shares . during the year
. F5N E-Commerce Ventures
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 eack Limite? (Hokding Company) 692,145 —_— o
Equily Shares of Rs. dCearh  Apishs Sarsf LA5067 b1 9 o
Equity Shares of Rs. it each  Azhok Saraf 3,56,328 12% o%
Ecuity Sharesof Rs. 10 such  Rekha Saraf 102,333 8% 0%
Eguity Shares of Rs. 20 each  Suyash Saraf 201,272 15% i
13,573,143
s at 31 March 2023
. % af tetal % of change
Particulars Promater Nama A, of shares shares during the year
; FSN E-Commerce Ventures
Equity Shares of Rs. I0 each Gemited 552,142 S1% o%
Equity Shares of fis, I0each  Anisha Saraf 1,985,067 1% o
Exquity Shares of Rs. 10 each  Ashok Saref 1,665,324 1% o%
Fouity Shares of Bs. 10 each  Rekfa Saraf 1,02,338 B 0%
Equity Shares of fis, 10 esch  Suyash Saraf 281,272 15% 09z

13,57,143
As per rucords of the Company, Heluding iy register of shareholdersfmenmbar: and othar degisrations received from sharehelders regarding beneficial interest, the

above shureholding represents borh lepad and Beneficial ownerships of shares,

W) Promotor Share Holding

As at 31t March, 2024

No. of shares at Ko. of shares

Srno Description Promoter the beginning of % of Totz! Shares atthe end of % of total shates % of chainge
name dusring the year
the year the year
i Equity Sharer of Rs. 10 each Suyash Saraf 2.03.272 30.27% 201,272 3027H Q000
2 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Anisha Saraf 185067 2533 1,855,067 2035 Qo0
3 Fguity Shates of Rs. 10 each Rekha Saraf 102,333 15.35% 302333 15.39% [ehei
4 £quity Shares of Rs, 10 each Asholk Saraf 1.66,328 25,005 166,228 201 G.00%
6,655,500 555,000
Ag at 21st March, 2023
o, of shares at Ho. of shares
Srno - Description Pramoter the beginning of % of Totat Shares atthe end of % of total shares % of change
name during the year
e yoar the year :
1 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 euch Suyash Saraf 201,272 30.27% 281,272 3MLITT% C.00%
2 Equity Shares of R, 10 zack Anisha Saraf 195,067 28.23% 195,067 28.33% 0.00%
3 Equity Shares of s, 10 each Rekha Saraf 105,33% 15.38% 302,233 15.39% 0005
4 Equity Shares of Rs, it each Ashok Saral 1.BE.328 25.01% 1,668,328 25.01% O.00%
: 545,000 545,000

v} Neither bonts shanes issued nor shares issued for contideration other than cash during thes period of Two years immedistely preceding the reporting date




Dot & Key Weliness Private Limited
Notes to the finandial statemams for the vear ended 31 March 2024
{Alf amounts are in INR millions extept per share duta and unless stated otherwise)

19 Other equity

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 20623
a Securities premium
Opening balance ' 482,90 482 .90
Add : Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 482.90 482.90
b Retained eamings
Opening balance {67.87) (38.55)
Add: Profit / {Loss) during the year 154.77 28,31}
Lass: Transter during the year
Closing balance : 86.90 {67.87)
¢ Other comprehensive income
Opening balance - {0.07)
Add : Additions during the year 045 0,07
Less: Transfer during the year ’ - -
Closing baiance 0.45 {e.00)
d Employee stock option reserve
Opening balance - -
Add ; Additions during the veasr 0.39 -
Less: Transfer during the year ' - -
Closing batance 0.39 -

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities premium :

Where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premiun
recerved on those shares is transferred to “Securities Prermfum ”.

The securities premium can be utilised only in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.
Retained earnings:
Retained Earnings are the profits / (losses) that the Company has earned till date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to

Other Compr ehensive Income:
This Represents The Cumulative Gains And Losses Arising On Remeasurementof Defined Employee Benefit Plan

Employee stack option reserve
This represents grant of stock option to the selected employees of the company.




Dot & Key Wefllness Private Limited |
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions except per share dota ond unless stoted otherwise)

Non Current Lease Liabilities

Asat Asat
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Payable for lease habiities* : 4.28 -
4.28 -
“The effective interest rate for lease Yabilicies is §.50% as on March 1, 2024 {9.50% as on March 31, 2023)
Non tusrent - Provisions
As at Asat
31 March 2624 31 March: 2023
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Provigion for Gratuity - refer note 3% 139 1.04
Provision for Compersated teave 0.8 008
148 1312
Cwrrent Lease Habilises
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 203
Fayable for lease liabifities* 144 432
244 A4.72
*The effective interest rate for lease lizbtities is 9.50% 1t on Mirrch 32, 2024 (S.50% a5 on March 32, 2023
Trade paysbles
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 3i March 2023
[{rried at smortized cost)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises ang
smalt enterprises .43 -
Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than BR.6E 39.27
Mt enterprises and small enterprises
' 39,16 3937
Ko trade or other Payatie are duefrom directors or saher officers of the company either saverally o jointly with any other parson.
Trade Puyables are non-intersst bearing,
Trade Fayable Ageling Schedule:
March 31, 2024
Less than 3
year 1-2¥s  2-3¥ry *3¥s Total
MSME
© Undisputed Trade Payable- Considered Good 2458 - - - 842
-Undisputed Trade Payabie- Which Have Significant
increase In Credit Risk . - - - .
Cthers
-Undisputed Trade Payabie- Considered Good 1055 - - - 39.58
~Undisputed Trade Payable- Whick Have Significar
ingrease in Gredit Risk - f - - -
' 49,1% - . - 4816
March 31, 2023
Lessthan 1
year 1-2¥rs >3 ¥Yrs Total
MSME
-Undisputed Trade Payable- Considered Good - . . N -
“Undisputed Trade Payable- Which Have S1gn|ﬁcant
Increase 1n Credit Risk - - - - -
Othars.
~Undisputed Trade Pivable- Cansidered Gaod 3997 - - - 36.17
-Undisputed Trade Fayabie- Which Hawe Significant
Increase in Credit Risk - - . - -
3917 - - 39.57

This Infarmation s reguired to bi disdosed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Emerpnse Development Act, 2008 and has beer: disclosed to the

extent such parties as identified on the basis of information available with the Company,
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Dat & ¥ey Welk Private Li
Notes to the financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{all amounts ore in INR millions except per shore dota and unless stoted otherwise)

The principal amount gnd the interest due thereon remaining unpaic-to any suppher s at the end
of each accounting yesr.

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accountng year.

The ameunt of interest due and payable for the pecod of delay in making gayment
The arholnt of interest acorued snd remaining unpais 2t the end of each accourting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable

Other financial Gabilites-Current

A. Other finandiai {izbifites-Currert
Employee related Habiiities
Cregliors for Expenses

Provisions for Expenses
Total other finantial lisbilities

Current Provisions

Provision far Grawity - refer note 32
Provision for Compensated Leave

Totzk

Contract Habilitles

Advance from Customers

Deferred revenue {Provision for Reward poins &
Coupon)

Totaf

Other current liabifities

Stawtory dues
{thers
Total

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
“0.48 -
.01 -
5.49 -
As at Asat
21 March 2028 31 March 2623
538 61
75.40 1680
0878 2556
18356 45,77
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
015 0.38
6.3 0.04
B.26 0.2z
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
£.45 1.52
0.55 185
7.00 3.17
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
451 Y]
028 0.2%
520 337




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A6l amounts are in INR miltions except per share datu and unless stated otherwise)

28 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of products
Sales 2,258.24 566.53
Less : Product Promotion Expenses {27579} {8920}
1,983.45 577.33
A Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Company derives its major revenue Trom sale of products, which is 2 singie lihe of business.
B Contract Balances
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Receivalbiles 84.54. 67.10

¢ Performance Obligation:
The Company enters into contract with majority of its customers ta saie products for a.consideration on & cost plus mark-up basis and which
constitite a single performance abligation that the company satisfies over time.

O Transaction price:
Sale of products )
Contract price is determined as per the terms agreed with the customer, and no further adjustments are rmade to the same. As such, there are ne
reconciing tems and hence the recondliation of the contract price is not disciosed.

E Costs to obtain the contract: .
The Company doas not incur material costs to obtain contracts with customers and contract fulfilment costs aregenerally expensed as incurred.




Dot & Key Wellness Private Linited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Afl amounts are in INR millions except per share data and unless stated otherwise}

23 Other income

30

31

32

a3

interest Income on:
Security Depasit
Fixed Deposit

Shipping & COD Charges
Other Income
Net Sundry balance written bhack

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in Inventories

Traded Goods
Opening balance
Closing baiance

Ermnpioyee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to provident & other fund
Contribution to welfare fund

Gratuity expenses {refer note 39)
Share based expenses

Compernsated expenses {refer note 39)
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

[nterest cost on lease fabilities

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.12 0.30

2332 18.87

23.24 18.96

(.47 1.14

112 2.00

0.20 Q.43

24.73 20.53

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

£37.98 . 218.43

637.98 21843

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

83.71 48.67

148.53 83.71

(64.82} {33.04}
{84.82) (35.04)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

66.46 A8 77

1.50 135

- 0.00

0.84 0.88
038 -

0.17 G.06

1.50 122

71.26 53.29

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.46 0.68

.46 0.69




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 _
{All aimounts are in INR millions except per share data and uniess stated otherwise)

Depreciation and amortization expense

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 252 162
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets {refer note 5} ' 5.47 4.70
Amgrtisation of intangible assets (refer note 6} ' 0.11 0.03
' 8.10 6.35

Other expenses
For the year ended for the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Administrative & Other Expenses 311 462
Seliing Expenses 357.86 98.57
Rates & Taxes ' 0.58 0.49
Rent - 3144 7.66
Consumption of Packing Materials 1.52 7.95
Payment Gateway Charges 402 ] 099
Marketing & Advertisemert Fxpenses 705.32 25342
Web & Technology Expenses £.28 3.85
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 4.03 2.01
Electricity Charges 0.86 0.84
Traveiling & Conveyance Expensas 1.62 1.46
Communication Expanses 014 0.06
Foreign Exchange GainfLoss - 0.02
Insurance Expenses : ¢.37 0.22
Legat and Professional Fees 6.50 3.82
Recruitment Charges 1201 5.28
Bank charges .08 0.15

Auditors Remuneration @
Audit fees ' 0.75 056
Taxation Matters Nzt 0.18
ECL Provision 0.75 G.14
1,147.25 392,26




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited

Notes ta the financial statemnents for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions except per shore duta ond unless stated otherwise)

36 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted £P5
Profit/ {Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (A)

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each:

Total number of shares outstanding during the year
Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B}

Add: Dilution impact of employee stock options antl Opticnally Convertibie Regeemabile
Preference Shares

Number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share { £}

Basic earhing. per share (b= AfB)
Diluted eaming per share {E = AJL)

For the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 31 March 2023
2024

154.77 {28.31}
13,57,143.00 13,57,143.00
1.36 1,35

136 1.36

113.80 {21.56}

113.80 {21.56)
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Dot & Key Weliness Private Limnited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All cmounts are in INR milffions except per share dota ond unless stated otherwise)

Leases
The Company as fessee

The Company has lease contracts for premises obtained for offices, warehouse etc. Leases of premises generally have lease

terms hetween 2 10 3 years

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets,

There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination opticns and variable lease payments, which are

further discussed below.
Refer note 5 for carrying value of right of use assets. .
Set out below are the carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As at 1 April 5.6% 1031

Addition £.76 -
Accretion of interest .46 0.69
Payments 6.19 5.31
Closing balance as on Mareh 31 6.72 5.69
Current 2.44 569

Non-current 4.28 -
6.72 5.69
. For the year ended For the year ended

The following amount are recognised in profit and loss 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation expenses of right of use assets 5.47 4,70
interest expenses on lease liabilities 0.46 0.69
583 5.39

The Cdmpany had totat cash outflow forieases of INR £.18 Mn { March 23 | INR 5.31 Mn}
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Notes to the finantial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Al} amounts are in INR millions except per share doto end uniless stated ptherwise)

Grangity and post-empioyment benefit plan:

1} Befined Contribution Plon

During the year, the Company has made contribution/ provision 1o provident find stated under defined contribution plsn amounting to INR
1.90 Mn {previcus year INR 135 Mn ) and the same has beer: recognized as &n expense in the stetement of profit and logs:

11} Defined Benefit Plans
The Company cperates a defined benefit gratuity pian for its employess. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has compiered at
least five years of service gels 2 gratuity on departure @ 15 days of iast drawn salary for 2ach completed year of servide.

The Company has provided for gratuity besed on actuadial valustion dooe a5 per provected unit credit method.

The following tables set but the funded starus of the gratuity plans and the ameunts recognised in the Company’s finarcal statements
as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023

Amount to be recognised in balance sheet

. Particulars As At 31 March 2024 As AY 33 March 2623
Present value of defined benefit obligation 14% 13F
Less; Fair waluve of plan assets - -
Funded status — deficit f {surplus) - -
Net liabftity recogmised in batence sheet 1.45 122

Changes ir the present value of defired benefit obligation

Feer the year ended For the year ended

Particalars 31 March 2024 33 March 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 122 0.66
Defined Benefit Obligation
Current seTvice cost {475 084
Interest cost Q.08 G.04
Rermeasurement gainfiass {0.60} 0323
Experience adjustments
Benefit paid
Closing defined benefit obligations 1.46 L2z
The principal ptians used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown betow:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mortalty Tabie SALM {2012-14) Wam 201214
Discount rate: F.15% 7.20%
Future salary increases” B.OGY ontil year 3 8.00%. until year 1
then B.50% then B.50%
Withdrawa! rates . 27.774-37.30% aeross
1% across gl levels it levels
LM - indian Assured Lves Mortzlity [Uitimate! JALM {2012-14) IALM: [2012-143

The discount rate is based an the pre\;ail'ing market yields of Government of ndia Bonds as at the Baiance Sheet date for the esTimated
terms of the obflgations.

~The estimutes of future salary inceases, considered in actuaria’ valuation, take account of infiation, seniority, premotion ang ather
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employrment markes.

The cost of the definec benefit gratunty plen and the present vaite of the gratuity phiigation are determined using actuarisl valuations. An
actperiz! vaivation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actua® developments in the future, These intiude the
determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortatity rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
iong-term nirtore, a defined beneft obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumprions. Al assurmplions #re reviewed ot sach
repoTting date.

The following payments are expected eontributions to the defined benefit plan in future vears:

As At 3] March 2024 As Ar31 March 2023

Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.15 0.1&
Between I and Syears 1.6 0.84
Berween & and 9 years .52 0.51
10 years and following vears o2 024

Toal expected nayments 2.0 1.76

J——
e
s




Dot & Key Weliness Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year snded 31 March 2024
{All emounts ore in INR miflions except per shore datts und uniess stated otherwise)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation 2t the end of the reporting period Is 4.2 yezrs {31 March 2023: 4.57
years}.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial mssumption as of end of reporting period is shown betow.
Particulars Ar 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023
Discount rave {-f+ 13¢)
Decresse by 50 basis poins 147 1.24
ingrease by 50 basis polnts {1.44} {1.21)
Future salary Increase (-+ 1%) -
Decrease by 50 basis poings {1.44% (1210
sncrease by 50 basis points .47 124

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on 2 methad that extrepolates the impact on defined benefic obligation 35 o
resyly of reasonzble changes in key assumptions ocourring at the end of thi reparting period and assuming there are 0o other changes in
the market conditions. There have been no chanyes from the pravioys periods i the methods and assumyptions nsed in preparing the
senstivity snabysis, ’

These plans Typically expose the Comnpany to actuarial riske such as; investment risk, interest risk, longevity risk and sajary risk,

{A) Investment risk — The present vaive of the defined benefitpian Hability is calcuiated using & discount rate which is determined by
referance to market vields ot the end of the reporing period on government bands; if the returm on plan asse! is below this rate, 7 will

(B) interest risk - A decresse in the discount rate will increase the plan liability,

{€) Longevity risk — The present vaiue of the defined benefit pian linbility is cattulated by reference 1o the best estimste of the mortality of
olan participants both during and after their empioyment. An increase in the Iife expectancy of the pian participants will increase the plan’s

{1 Salory risk - The present value of the defined plan liabiiity & coiculated by zeference to the future sslaries of plan participants. As such,
an increase in the salary of the pian partitipants will increase the pian’s Fabeity.
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Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2024

{All ormounts are in INR millfons except per share datn and unless stated otherwise}

Related party transactians

A, Names of the related parties

Tirectors & Key Management Personnel

#) Mt Ashok Saraf Director
b} Mr Syyash Saraf Director
B} Mr Sujeet Roopchiand fain Director
B Mr Ganest Padmanabhan Director
~Hoiding & Subsidizry
a) F5N E-Commerce Ventures Limited  Holding Company
bi Mykaa E-Retail Private Limited Feliow Subsidiary
€3 RSN Brand Private Limited Feilow Subsidiary
&) FSN Distribution Private Lirited Fellow Subsidiary
b} FSN International Private Limited fellow Subsidiary
- Relative of Directors & Key Managemeny Per L {KMP)
@) Anjshz Saraf Spouse of Suyash Saraf
B. Transagtions with Related party
] T i .
vy | Ctnang | SRR | oustanaing
Particylars ‘Nature of transactions uring ine ye balances ason 31 e yea bajarcas 2 on 31
ended March 2024 ended March 2023
31 March 2024 a 31 March 2023
-Directors and Key Management
Personnel
r Suyash Saraf {3 Remuneration (233} (G213 (2.54) .
~"Holding & Subsidiary
FEN Drangs Marketing Private Limited | (i} Sales 17.85 4.52 0.08 -
{i1) Product Promotion Expense {1.88} - {083 -
{iiiy Adveertisernent Expense {0.04) - - .
FSN Distribution Private Limited {1} Sales 29.72 {4.39) 2348 245
1i) Product Promotion Expense {6.44) - {1.48) -
{iii} Quisourcet Manpower Cost (13.08) - {(3.36) -
(W} Advertisernent {3.25) - (0.503 -
FSN internationai Private Limited () Sales 1.5 - 0.14 0.14
mykaz E-Retail Private Limzed (1} Sales 7145 1E.8¢ 2871 2527
(iij Product Promotion Expense {226.10) - {84.76; -
fiit) Advertisermigns Expense {83.28) - {51.89)
-Relative of Directors and Key ‘
Marzgement Personnel
‘Mrs Anisha Saraf {i) Remuneration (233} {8.27) (2.54)

Figures in brockets indicates payobie

Terms and congitions of transactions with related parties
The sales to and purthases from related parties are made oo tarms equivalent to those that prevail in grm's length transections Jutstanding baiznces at the
vear-end sre unsecured and interest fres and settfement accurs in cask. There have been ng guaraniees provided or received for any related party recgivabies

or payables.

* The Company do not have any other transaction with key munagerial person than that is disciosed sbove.




Dot & Key Wellness Private timited
Notes to the finantial statements for thie year ended 31 March 2022
_ {All omounts are in INR millions except per shore dita and unless stoted otherwise)

40 Commitments and contingent liabilities

A Commitments
The Company does not have any contract rémalning to be execited on capital sccount and not provided for (net 6f advaricas) - INR Nil Min a5 21 )
31 March 2024 {31 March 20235 - Nif)

The Cormpany does not have lease contracts that have not yet commenced 25 at 31 March 2024.

B Contingent liabilities {not provided for}
The Compary does not have any contingent iabilities - INR Nit Mn as at 37 March 2024 (31 March 2023 - Nil)

41 Fair value measurement hierarchy
The fair velues of finsncial assets and liabilitiey aré included at the amount 2t which the instrument ¢an be dxchangad in 2 cumrent transacion
betwesn willing parties, other than in a forced orliguidation sale.

The-following methods and assumptions were used ta estimate the fair values:

a. Carrying values of financial assets Le. cash and cash equivaients, trade receivabies , others financia) assets and of financial liabilives Le trade snd
other payabies, working cepitzl Joan borrowing and other finsincial kabilities are reasonable apbroximations of their fair values due to the short
maturities.of these instruments,

Carryving value as of Fair value as of March 31,
Particulars  Leve March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 2024 Marth 31, 2023
Firancial Asgets:
Fair Vafue through other comprehensive Income
Mor-cument investments Level 2

Amortised cost

Current investments 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.co
Trade receivablés 24.54 B7.70 84.54 87.10
Cash and cash equivalents 184,28 17.35 184,28 17.35
Other finandial assets 8.06 8.05 9.08 2.05
Bank balaroe other than cash 2nd cash ec 385.25 290.00 333,26 260.00

Financiat Liabilities:

Amartised cost
Lease liabilities 244 472 244 472
Other financial liabilities 195,56 4577 193.58 4577

Trade payables 49,18 3917 40,18 38.17

b. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disciosing the fair value of financiat instruments by valuation tachniques:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted} prices in active markets for identical assets or iiabilities.
Leved 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have 3 significant effect on the recorded fair valuve are ahservabie, either diractiy or indiractly.
Level 3: technigues which use inputs that have 2 significant effact on the recorded fair value that are not based on observabie market data.

Fair value measurement hierafchy of the Company's finantis! sssels and liabilities mensured at FVTPL. There are no financial assets and lizbilities
mepsured at VIO, During the period ending tdarch 31, 2024 and March 2023 there were no Transfers between Levei 1 and Leve! 2 fair value
MEASUrSment

42 Segment informatior:
The Company is engaged in the business of sefling, distributing of beauty, weliness, fitness, personal health care, skin care, hair care product. Al
the artivities of the Company revolve around this main business. The Chief Operating Jecision maker (CODM) monitars the operating results of
- the business as & whole for the purpese of making detision about resource aflocation and performance assessment.
Therefore munagement views Company's business activity as & single segment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistertly with profitor loss in the financial statements, The
Company aperstes in a single geographical environment .. s ndia, ) )




43

A2

A3

Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amentts ore in INR millions except per shore dita ond unless stated otherwise)

Capitai management

The Company &ims 1o mansge its capital efficientiy so as to safeguard its abifity to Continue as 3 going concem and to optimise returns 1o
its shareholders,

The capitai structure of the Company is based on management's jutigement of the approphiate bajance of key elements in order to meet
its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capizal stricture in
tight of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underfying assets. In order 1o malntain or adjust the capita!
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital ta shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company's policy s 1o maintzin 3 stable and strong capital strutture with 4 focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors
and market confidence and to sustain future developrment and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order
0 TRalntsin, or if necessary adjust, its capdal structure.

No changes wera made in the objactives, policies or processes for managing capital turing the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2073,

The net gearing ratio is notreported since thers is A6 Borrowing in the company

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal finandial babilities comprises loan from bank, working capita! foan, trade and other payables . The main purpose
of these financal ligblities is o finance the Company's operations. The Company's prngipal financiai assets include trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly From its aperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and fiquidiny risk. The Company’s senior management gversees fhe management of
these risks, The Board of Directors review and agree poiicies for managing each of these risks, which are suimimarised below.

Market risk
Market fisk is the risk that tha fair value of future cash flows o a financial mstrurment will fluctuste because of changes In market pricas.
Market risk mainly comprises corrency risk, product price risk and interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of chunges in foreign
exrhange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refates primarily to the Company's operating
activities denorminated in foreign currency and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refates primariy 1o trade payables.
Since the Company’s overall foreign currency exposure is not significant, the Company does not hedge #ts foreign currency payables,

Foreign currency sensithvity
Since the business of the Company doesn't involves material fareign currency transactions, is exposure to foreign currenty changes is

Product price risk

in 3 potentiahly inflationary ecanomy, the Company expects periogicsi price intreases across is product iines. Product price increases
which gre not in line with the fevels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the busingss/ sales volumes. iri such z scenaric, the
risk is managed by offering judi¢iovs product discounts to custorhers to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors for
purchase price rebates such that the rebates substantially sbsorb the product discounts ofered to the customers. This helps the
Company to protect itsel from significant produc margin Josses. This mechanism aiso works in case of 2 Gownturn in the reta sector,
although oversli valumes would get affected.

interest rate risk
The Company is not to exposed 1o interest rate risk .

Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will nat meet its obligations under 2 finandal instrument or customer contract, leadingtoa
financist foss. The Cornpany is exposed to credit risk from i operating activities {primartly trade recelvablest




Dot & Key Wallness Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Al amounts are in INR millions except per share dato ond sriess stoted otherwise)}

Trode recenvables

The Company's retsil business is predominantly on ‘cash-on delivery', the credit risk on such collections ig rimimak, The Jompany has
adopted a poticy d'f dealing with only (redit worthy counterparties in case of institutional custamers and the credit risk exposure for
institutional customers js managed by the Company by credit worthiness checks.

The Company’s experience of delingueniies and customer disputes have been minimal. Further, Trade and other receivables consist of o
izrge number of customers, hence, the Company is not exposed 1 Concentration risks.

Security Deposits
The Company also corries credit rsk bn lRase deppsits with tandiords for properties taken on feases, for which agrezments are gigned and
property possessions are taken for operations. The risk relating to refunds after vacating the premises is managed through successful -

Finoncial instruments ond cosh deposits

Credir risk from balances with banks and finaricial Institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Compary’'s policy. investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned 1o each
counterparty. Counterparty credit llmits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated
throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's Finance Committee. The Himits-are set 1o minimise the concentration of nisks
aod therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparky’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidliry sisk

Liquidity risk is @ risk that the Company may not be able to mestits financial obligations on a timely basis through its cash ahd cash
equivatents, and funds available by way of committed credit facilities from banks. Management manages the liguidity risk by monitoring
roiling cash flow forecssts and maturity profiles of financial sssets and tabilities. This monitoring includes finandal miios and takes inte
arcount the sctessibility of cash and cash eguivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities.

Farticulars ' Carrying value ﬁ!::n TioSyears > Syears Fotal
A at March 31, 2024
Borrowings - - - - -
Trade payebles 49,18 48 18 - - 48,16
‘Oiber fnancial \abilites 19556 183.50 - - 183,66
i ease fnbilities 572 2.44 4.28 - 672
Totat . 249.44 245106 428 - 24544
As gt March 314, 2023
Borrowings - - - - -
Trade payaklas 38.17 38,57 - - 3817
Other financiat abiides 3577 4577 - < 4877
Lease fiabilities A4.72 472 - - 472
Total 88.66 8566 - - 89.68
i
AT 53
S TERGN
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Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Al amounts are in INR millions except per share dato and unless stoted otherwise}

Share based payments

Under the Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2024 (2024 Scheme}, the stock options of the company were granted to certain
employees.Vesting period of options is 1 to 2 years and options are vested equatly over the vesting period. Vésted options are
exercisable as per the terms of the option plan, provided the employee is in empioyment of the Company on the date of the
vesting of the stock options and should not be serving his natice period. The fair value of the share options is estimated at the
grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share

options were granted.

The Company has recognised an expense of INR 0.38 Mn {Mareh 31, 2023: INR Nil } arising from equity settled share based

payment iransactions for employee services recaived during the year.

Options granted under ESOS 2024

Porticulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Options granted during the year

Options forfeited during the year

Options expired/lapsed during the year

Options exercised during the yvear

Options outstanding at the and of the year

For options cutstanding at the end of the year:
Exercise price

Weighted average remaining contractual life {in years}

5,123

9,123

10
145

Particutars

ESOP Scherne 2024

Dividend yietd {9%]

Expected life (years)

Risk free interest rate (%)
Volatility (%)

iarket price on date of grant
Fzir Value

Ni}

1-2 years
6.97%-6.98%
35%-4{%.
INR 5051
IMR 5043




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Al cmounts are in INR millions except per shate doto ond unless stated otherwise)

45 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The identification of Micro, Smalf and Medium Entarprises is based on the Management's kniwledge af their status. Disclosure of trade payables under

47 Event sfrer reporting dates
There have heen no event after reporting dates that require disclosure in this finangal stiternents.

4%  Social Senwity Code
The Code on Sodal Sequrity, 2020 {‘Code”) reiating to employes benefits during employment and post employment benefits

45 Ratie Analysis and its siements

Sr NG IRItG TNurerator Drerominatar Frresyy Mar-23] % Change |Reasoning
1 |Curreny Ratio Cyrrent Asset Current Habilities 2.80 4,55 -4 1L 27%)]
; Profiiti it
2 |Returnon equity  |Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity G631 [2.07) -536.61% \li}:;to rofiitin curren
Inveriories ¢ . .
3 r:ﬁn ries tfo Costof goods sald Average Inventony 4.94 .77 78.39%! Dua 1o infraase in TOGS
de Heceivable [N i = i . ) NPTV v w—
2 Tra eceival .e et cradit sales = Gross credit fverags Trade Receivable 26.15 1255 108.45%] L1 10 nCrease in révenue
T/0 sales - sales return in current yesr
. Net credit purchases = Gridss .
Tr b . . Due ase |
5 |IROepayabies |t purchases - purchase  |Average Trade Payable 1648 8.50 go.3gx DUS O increase in purchase
/0 in current year
return
: . Due ta increase in revenue
N gal T/ W = - sal : ital = : : _
6 E‘t Capital 7/ et sales = Total sales - sales | Working capital Curre_vm 387 152 154.34%]|& cecrease in working
ratic POt agsers — Currant liabilities .
- : capital
g = N o "
7 |NetFrofitratio  |MetProfit et sares w Total sales - salss £.10 ©o7)]  -2007py|"uE 0 Proft Bincreaseio
retuien [ sales I current yeut
Returnon Caphtal | . Capital Empityed = Tangible : Due to Profiitincurrent
g L befo t ] . L X -492.01% .
ernployed EAMMINgS belore interest and 2y Net Worth + Total Debt 03 foos) year
Returnon tnterest income on fixed . Due tyincrease in Fixed
A irtviest in fi R . 4.66% -
8 inwestment degosit verage mant in fixed de 0.06 0.06 ) Deposit interest rate

50 Additional Regulatory information
{i} Title deeds of immovable properties not held in neme of the tompasy
The Company does nat have Immovabie property in the name of the campany.
{il) Revaluation of ! nent Property )
The Company does not have property in the name of the company .
{lii} Reveluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Fhere hive been no revaluation of Plant, Property and Squipment during the current year,
{iv) Rewaluation of Infangible Assets
There hawve been ne revaluation of intangible Assers during the current year.

{vi{al Loans or Advances
During the year, the Company has not sdvanced of ioaned or invested funds {gither bormowead funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds] to any other person{s) or entity{ies), intluding foreign entities [intermediaries} with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the intermetiizry shall:

{i} directly of indirectly tend or mvest in ther persons or entities identified in 2y manner whitsoever by or on behalf of the company {Uitimate
geneficiaries); or

{it} provide any guarantes, security or the tiketo or on behalf of the Ultimate Senaficiaries.

(v}{b) During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any personts] or entityfies}, including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the
understanding {whether recorded in weitng or otherwise) that the Company shaii:

{i} dtrectly or indirectly lend or invest in ciher persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or or behalf of the Funding Party (Uitmate
 Beneficiaries); or
{if} provide any guarantee, security orthe: Iike 16 or on behalf of the Uitimate Seneficiarias.
{vi] Capital w::rk-i:_‘l-Progress {CWIP) ageing schadule / completion schedute
The Company does pot Bave any capital work in progress.
(vil} Intangible assets under tdeveloy t ageing schedule § compietion schedule
The Company tioes not have any intangitie assat under develbpment
(viHl) Petails of Benarmi Property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for hoiding benumi property under the Benam] Transactions {Profibition) Act,
1G85 (45 of 1988} and Bules made thergynder,

{ix} Security of current assets against borrowings
The Company does not have borrowings.




Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2028
{AN amounts ure in INR millions except per shore dote and uniess stated ctherwise)

{x] Whiful Defaufter
The Company has not Been declared witful defaulter by any bank or finandial institution or government or any government authority,
{ai}  Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company has rot entered irto any ransaction with Struck off Companies.
{xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companiss (ROC)
No satistaction of charges are pending 10 be fled with ROC,
(i} Comgliance with number of layers of companies
The Company hies camnpliad with the number of layecs prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
{xv] Compliznte with approved Scheme(s} of Arrang
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 te 237
oF the Companies Act, 2013

{awi) Disclosure in relation to undisdosed intome
There are no transactions which are not regorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessrents under the income Tax Act, 1961,

{xvii} Details of Crypto cumency o Virual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency of virtual currency during the finarcial vear,

51 The comrpany has used #n accounting software Tor maintaining its books of acgount which has 5 feature of recording audit trait {edit logi facdity and the
sarme has been operated throughoot the year for ali relevant transactions recorded in the software.

52  Previcus year figares have been regrouped and reciassitied wherever required te conform to those of the current year.

AS per our report attached
Forv. C shah & Lo, For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants : Dot & Key Weliness Private Umited
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